



CENTRE FOR EXCELLENCE IN CHILD AND FAMILY WELFARE

## Submission – Parliament of Victoria Family and Community Development Committee Inquiry into the processes of responding to criminal abuse of children by personnel in religious and other non-government organisations



## September 2012

## **Contents**

About the Centre for Excellence in Child and Family Welfare (the Centre)			
The rights and welfare of children are our central concern			
Three elements of responding to criminal abuse of children in community service organisations:			
1. Promotion of safety			
2. Prevention of abuse6			
3. Responding to reports of abuse8			
Current reports of abuse in community service organisations8			
Mandatory Reporting11			
Failure to Protect Legislation12			
Reports of past abuse in community service organisations			
The Importance of Information13			
Justice15			
Redress16			
References			



Appendix 1	.19
The Child Wellbeing and Safety Act 2005	. 19
Appendix 2	.21
Centre for Excellence Training Calendar	. 21
Appendix 3	.24
Processes and Procedures in residential care	.24
Processes and Procedures in kinship care	. 27
Procedures for review in foster care	. 32



## About the Centre for Excellence in Child and Family Welfare (the Centre)

The Centre for Excellence in Child and Family Welfare and its members share social responsibility with government and the broader community for addressing disadvantage and eliminating vulnerability in Victoria. Established in 1912 as the state peak body for child and family welfare, the Centre provides independent analysis, dialogue and cross-sectoral engagement to break down multi-causal factors that perpetuate vulnerability. With our members, our role is to build capacity through research, evidence and innovation to influence change.

Reflecting our purpose, the strategic priorities for the Centre across 2012-2015 are to:

- influence through engagement
- build evidence and innovation
- strengthen capacity through analysis.

The Centre is an incorporated association, guided by a Board of 12 directors. The Board is comprised of individuals drawn from our 90 member organisations, together with our chief executive officer and an expert academic member. Member organisations provide a range of early childhood, child and family support services, youth and out-of-home care services including kinship care, foster care and residential care.

## The rights and welfare of children are our central concern

The United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child Articles 3 and 19 provide for governments to act to protect children. These provisions establish the guiding principle of the 'best interests of the child', the responsibility of the State to intervene to ensure protection and care for the child, to put in place legislative measures to ensure protection and to provide support for those who have care of the child.



The Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006 (Vic) provides for the protection of families and children in section 17 and requires public authorities to act to afford protection. It provides that legislation must operate in such a way that recognises that families and children must be protected.

These high level responsibilities of the State are translated into action through the work of community service organisations such as those which are members of the Centre. Ensuring that the intervention of community service organisations in the lives of children and families is positive requires attention to promotion of safe communities, prevention of abuse and appropriate responses to incidences of abuse when they are uncovered.



# Three elements of responding to criminal abuse of children in community service organisations:

## 1. Promotion of safety

Promotion of a child safe community starts with a clear statement of intent in relation to the place of children in society and respective roles in relation to promotion of child safety. Promotion of child safety and the prevention of criminal abuse require a whole-of -community approach. In its response to the Protecting Victoria's Vulnerable Children Inquiry (PVVC) the Centre proposed a shared social responsibility approach to the development of public policy and programs. (CFECFW 2011a : CFECFW 2011b) This has subsequently been taken up in the Governments Victoria's Vulnerable Children: our shared responsibility Directions Paper. (Victorian Government 2012, 3)

Efforts to prevent and respond to criminal abuse of children must be undertaken in the context of supportive and protective community attitudes toward children. This requires a whole of community awareness about the centrality of children in our community. Further it requires that the voice of children and young people in all aspects of their lives are listened to (CFECFW 2011d).

Much of the attention and effort in promotion of child safety and wellbeing is focused on family intervention to promote family strengths or address family problems in relation to known risk factors for abuse of children: these include family violence, drug and alcohol abuse and mental health issues. This is to be expected. It does mean however that strategies for promotion of safety and prevention of abuse of children in organisational settings, the subject of this Inquiry, has not received sufficient attention.

In a comprehensive review of research into community attitudes and awareness about child safety Nair identified three key issues:

- the safety of children is not perceived as a major community issue
- there is a need for education for parents and the general community on child safety issues, and



• community awareness campaigns have efficacy in preventing child abuse. (Nair, 2012)

The PVVC Inquiry noted equivocal evidence around outcomes of promotional social marketing approaches to child abuse and neglect but others have noted the effectiveness of social marketing approaches in raising awareness, knowledge, attitudes and in behaviour change which promotes the safety of children in community settings (Cummins 2012, 129–130 : Horsfall, Bromfield and McDonald 2010). These are all necessary to a systematic approach to addressing the issue of abuse in community settings.

### 2. Prevention of abuse

The Convention on the Rights of the Child sets high level protections for children, as does the Victorian Charter of Human Rights. In addition the Child Wellbeing and Safety Act 2005 sets out principles for non-government and community service organisations providing services for children and families in a way which is protective and responsive. Section 1 (c) requires that those who develop and provide services, as well as parents, should give the highest priority to the promotion and protection of a child's safety, health, development, education and wellbeing.

The Centre for Excellence in Child and Family Welfare believes that the obligation to have regard to the principles of the Child Wellbeing and Safety Act should be extended to all organisations having contact with children and young people. This would include organisations not currently required to have regard to the principles such as religious organisations and sporting clubs.

Ongoing **workforce education** is central to prevention of abuse in organisations. Sensitivity and awareness informed by workforce education informs procedural and statutory guidelines. The Centre provides specific general and in-house training, with an emphasis on improving practice, for those working in the child and family services sector. This includes a specific program for residential care workers through the RCLDS (Residential Care and Learning and Development Strategy). During 2011–2012, approximately 550 workers attended our general



training sessions and 810 workers attended our training sessions for residential care workers. In addition, 18 in-house programs were delivered in that same period. Some of the topics covered in the training included Good Documentation, Introduction to Assessment of Risk and Need, Appropriate Screening of Carers and Managing Conflict Effectively. These training opportunities are relevant to all community organisations seeking to develop preventative and protective approaches in their organisation irrespective of their role in the child and family welfare system. A calendar of the training provided by the Centre is contained in Appendix 2.

Community services organisations providing services to children young people and their families are required to ensure **recruitment and screening** practices for both staff and voluntary carers are compliant with the Working with Children Act 2008. Compliance is subject to external audit under the Department of Human Services Standards (Victorian Department of Human Services, 2011). A 'Staff and Carer Audit Tool' has been developed to ensure the audits capture the required information from files held by community service organisations. While the Human Services Standards and Staff and Carer Audit Tool have only recently been introduced, a comprehensive program of information sessions has been held to ensure that community service organisations are aware of their obligations.

This is an example of preventative approaches which community service organisations implement to address potential abuse within their organisations and has been developed in response to two Victorian Ombudsman Reports (2005 and 2010) addressing out-of-home care which pointed to major deficiencies in the screening and review of employees and carers.

Most community services organisations especially those providing services to children, young people and their families require all staff to hold a working with children check and a police check irrespective of whether they are directly engaged in working with children



### 3. Responding to reports of abuse

#### Current reports of abuse in community service organisations

Reports of abuse of a child in an organisation require three different modes of responding. It is important that these differing responses are clearly understood by the community service organisation. In most cases it is not appropriate or procedurally compliant for the community service organisation to undertake all three modes of action. However it is the responsibility of the community service organisation is to ensure that all three modes of responding are in place.

- Attending to the child: ensuring that the child or young person's immediate needs are met and that they are appropriately listened to and supported
- 2. Investigation of the report: ensuring that the appropriate and required investigatory processes are triggered and that these are independent ( see below)
- 3. Response: support counselling and treatment as required

Members of the Centre – if providing services funded by the Victorian Department of Human Services – are required to have particular procedures in place to respond to reports ('allegations') of abuse of children in their services. All organisations receiving funding from the Department of Human Service are required to comply with Incident Reporting Processes. Thus children in contact with community service organisations providing family support services are bound within these procedures. (Victorian Department of Human Services, 2012)

The process for **responding to reports of abuse in out-of-home care** was developed with the involvement of community services organisations and released in 2009. (Victorian Department of Human Services, 2009).



Where a report of abuse is made by a child or young person, a family member or a staff member or fellow client there are three streams of procedures which may be triggered:

- 1. Internal community service organisation procedures
- Procedures laid down by the Department of Human services for responding to critical incidents and procedures for notification of quality of care concerns in out-of-home care which trigger a DHS investigation
- 3. Police investigation

These processes are highly formulated with limited discretion on the part of the community organisation. The procedures vary according to whether the report of abuse occurs in community based family support services, residential care (DHS 2009, 181), kinship care (DHS 2009, 231) or foster care (DHS 2009, 250).

Some organisational members have expressed concern about the difficulties of balancing the need to ensure the child's safety and integrity of their voice and unimpeded investigation with the community service organisation's obligations as an employer to ensure transparent and respectful processes for the employee: such as when required to stand down staff pending an investigation. This places the community services organisation in a position of conflicting responsibilities when a Police investigation cannot be actioned or concluded in a timely way. Some community organisations have expressed concern about the loss of experienced staff or carers in the context of allegations subsequently not substantiated.

Out-of- home care providers have particular responsibilities in relation to the prevention of abuse because of the additional vulnerabilities of children in their care. In 2010 The Ombudsman identified a number of concerns in relation to the safety of children. These were:

- inadequate screening of carers
- poorly conducted investigations
- children remaining in placements after allegations of inappropriate physical discipline have been substantiated



- failure to take appropriate action against carers after abuse has been substantiated
- inadequate support and training of carers
- inadequate supervision and monitoring of staff (Ombudsman Victoria 2010, 12)

The Ombudsman pointed to the importance of transparency in the reporting of critical incidents and allegations of abuse of children in care to ensure ongoing attention to issues of safety in care (Ombudsman Victoria 2010, 12). Quality of Care investigations which encompass allegations of abuse of children in kinship care, foster care or residential care are now reported in the Department of Human Services Annual Report. In 2010–2012 416 allegations were investigated with 78 substantiated. Quality of Care investigations encompass a broader range of care issues and are not necessarily confined to cases of criminal abuse.

The Child Safety Commissioner has an important role in reviewing Category One Critical Incident Reports and reports on themes arising from these in their Annual Report (Child Safety Commissioner 2012, 22). Invariably these reports encompass known cases of criminal abuse of children in services funded by the Department of Human Services. At present the Child Safety Commissioner reports on Category One Incident Reports directly to the Minister. The report is not publicly available. A 2010 report from the Victorian Ombudsman gives some insight into scale with 467 Category One incidents reported in 2008–09 and 288 reported in 2007– 08 . The relationship between victim and perpetrator is reported below. Most incidents are in residential care. In 2008–09 593 clients were involved in Category One incident reports including multiple reports. Again, these reports encompass much more than the criminal abuse of children (Ombudsman Victoria 2010, 129).



Table 10. Relationship between alleged victim and perpetrator		
Relationship	Grand Total	
carer > client	105	
carer's child > client	14	
client to self*	151	
client > staff	11	
client > client	83	
client > other	16	
client > carer's child	1	
other > staff	1	
other>client	86	
staff>client	61	
N/A / Unknown / blank	64	
Grand Total of clients	593	
* The client to self definition includes cases of children prostituting, engaging in self harming behaviour and attempting suicide.		

Transparency about the size and scope of the problem of criminal abuse of children in community service organisations however would be enhanced if the numbers and nature of these reports were reported on in aggregated form in the Annual Report of the proposed Children's Commissioner.

### **Other Measures**

#### Mandatory Reporting

Mandatory reporting as introduced to Victoria in 1993 was retained in the Children, Youth and Families Act 2005 but has not been extended beyond those professional groups already gazetted to report. Mandatory reporting is now deeply entrenched in the Victorian response to vulnerable children and young people but the fundamental dilemmas obvious at its introduction remain: an under-resourced and poorly distributed system of services to address the needs of those children, young people and families caught up in a report. Mandatory reporting contributes to a high number of child protection notifications and volume is extremely sensitive to media coverage. (CFECFW 2012)



The PVVC Inquiry recommended that mandatory reporting be extended to the additional professional categories already named in legislation in addition to including Ministers of Religion. However, the Centre does not generally believe that expanding current mandatory reporting requirements at this stage would lead to greater security for vulnerable children, young people and their families. Rather, effort should be focused on the education and cultural change in organisations that are not currently sensitised to child safety issues. Provision of comprehensive and well-distributed prevention and support services are also important so that points of immediate response to incidents of abuse are easily identifiable to those who are not necessarily part of the child and family services system (CFECFW 2011).

### Failure to Protect Legislation

Failure to protect legislation invokes criminal penalties for a third party who fails to act on incidences of abuse of children and young people. In a recent submission to the Attorney General the Centre expressed caution about the experience of the operation of similar provisions in other jurisdictions. The Centre observed that:

Community welfare and family support agencies seeking to secure the long term wellbeing of children are also concerned about the impact of the legislation. In the United States where Failure to Protect Laws have been operating for 40 years and are now in statute in all States there has been a distinct gender bias in those prosecuted. The gender bias has also been reflected in convictions. Fugate sets out three minimum content requirements for "failure to protect" legislation to ensure that gender bias in the application of the laws is eliminated and that women and their children seek help and are protected. These minimum requirements are:

- Laws and courts should clearly define what actions establish a duty to protect children.
- Laws should clearly define the steps persons must take when they become aware of abuse.



• Laws should provide for an affirmative defence to excuse persons who fear for their safety or the safety of abused children (CFECFW 2011, 6).

The Centre for Excellence believes that if legislation around "failure-to-protect" is introduced that it should satisfy these three criteria to avoid gender bias arising from the social construction of roles and responsibility in relation to care for children.

### Reports of past abuse in community service organisations

The processes of response by community service organisations to allegations of past abuse are not as prescriptive as those in place for current allegations but the same principles should apply:

- 1 Attending to the victim: ensuring complainants immediate needs are met and that they are appropriately listened to and supported with a clear statement of the options open to them.
- 2 Investigation of the report: ensuring that where desired the appropriate and required investigatory processes are triggered and that these are independent.
- 3 Response: support counselling and treatment as required. In some community service organisations reparation is available for victims of past abuse.

### The Importance of Information

The Centre has been one of the project partners to the Who Am I Project which under Professor Cathy Humphreys of Melbourne University has made an outstanding contribution to the role of records and archives in underpinning a proper response in the context of allegations of past abuse in community service organisations. The Centre has also established a Forgotten Australians Report working group which has been assisting community service organisations to address issues for people who have been in care and advocating for care leavers.

Some member community service organisations provide well developed information and contact programmes which can be the starting point for addressing allegations of past abuse of people who have experienced care.



Berry Street provides a Heritage and Information Service for past clients and has a comprehensive policy and procedures for the accessing of records.

Berry Street is also the provider of the government funded service for Forgotten Australians, Open Place. The Support Service for Victoria's Forgotten Australians provides former 'care' leavers (people who grew up in institutions or foster care in Victoria until 1989) and their immediate family members with personal support, help with records and family searches, counselling, social activities, reunions, support groups, opportunities to learn new skills, as well as assistance with other specific needs.

Organisations which have Heritage and Information Services have developed policies and processes which have the following features:

- policy and procedures are consistent with Freedom of Information requirements
- a clearly articulated publicly available policy of access to files and associated records which is endorsed at governance level of the organisation which is predicated on entitlement to access and which is periodically reviewed.
- clear procedural statements for responding to requests for information and allegations of past abuse
- a single clear entry point for enquirers which is publicised and approachable
- a service which recognises the importance of archival organisational information for past clients
- a service which provides professional counselling and support to inquirers as well as archival support
- a service which is free to past clients in recognition of the particular responsibility of the organisation providing care
- a service with clearly established referral pathways for specialist referral including to the Victorian Police where additional issues such as allegations of past abuse emerge



Not all community service organisations which provided out-of-home care in the past or their inheritor organisations (possibly up to 100 organisations in Victoria were providers) have such well-developed responses to requests for information advice and support - these requests are often the precursor to emerging allegations of abuse. The Centre for Excellence recommends that:

- Further training around FOI requirements is provided to community service organisations and other organisations which may hold past records.
- The development of standards for the establishment of Information and Advice services for organisations and their successors which have provided care. The report of the forgotten Australian s provides a foundation for the establishment of these standards.

It should be recognised that people who have experienced past care or abuse in care do not necessarily feel comfortable or able to approach the organisation responsible for that care. Adequate financial support for the Berry Street Support Service for Forgotten Australians is necessary to ensure that there is an independent entry point for inquirers in this situation.

#### Justice

The Senate Community Affairs Committee referred to the multiple barriers those who have experienced abuse in care meet when attempting to achieve just outcomes (Senate Community Affairs Committee 2004, 212). These include difficulties in achieving legal action against perpetrators due to cost and evidentiary concerns. While statute of limitations does not apply to prosecution of perpetrators of criminal abuse, information barriers persist, including evidentiary and DPP assessment of the likelihood of success. The Senate Community Affairs References Committee in reviewing implementation of the Forgotten Australians Report recommended the establishment of specialist Police units to receive complaints of past abuse and cooperation between jurisdictions to ensure cumulative information about offenders is collected (Community Affairs References Committee 2009, 226).



#### Redress

Abuse of a child while under the care of a community service organisation is potentially a failure of duty of care, even where the abuse has not been perpetrated by a staff member or carer. The response by community service organisations to abuse involves consideration of financial reparation to address the long term costs to the individual of trauma and its sequellae.

Some clients of Church – auspiced community service organisations – are eligible for schemes of redress established by their Church. Some community service organisations do not require abuse to be substantiated before considering reparation for past clients.

In other instances past clients must seek redress through civil action in the Courts where they will be required to substantiate harm arising from the abuse. The experience for people who have been in care or past clients of community organisations in Victoria can therefore be quite different. This is inequitable. For this reason and consistent with the recommendation the Senate Community Affairs Committee, the Centre for Excellence in Child and Family Welfare supports the establishment of a redress scheme in Victoria.

Further information:

Marilyn Webster

Centre for Excellence in Child and Family Welfare

Tel 9614 1577



## References

CHARTER OF HUMAN RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES ACT 2006. No. 43 of 2006

UN General Assembly, 1989. CONVENTION ON THE RIGHTS OF THE CHILD, United Nations.

Centre for Excellence in Child and Family Welfare, 2011a. *Protecting Victoria's Vulnerable Children Inquiry 2011.....it's their outcomes that matter,* Melbourne: Centre for Excellence in Child and Family Welfare.

Centre for Excellence in Child and Family Welfare, 2011b. *Their outcomes: local governance and outcomes frameworks for vulnerable children, young people and their families. Issues Paper One.,* Melbourne: Centre for Excellence in Child and Family Welfare.

Centre for Excellence in Child and Family Welfare, 2011d. *Their voice: Involving children and young people in decisions, services and systems,* Melbourne: Centre for Excellence in Child and Family Welfare.

Centre for Excellence in Child and Family Welfare, 2011. *Submission to Department of Justice Discussion Paper on Failure to Protect Laws* : Unpublishd.

Centre for Excellence in Child and Family Welfare, 2012. *Mandatory Reporting Fact Sheet,* Melbourne: Centre for Excellence in Child and Family Welfare.

Childrens Services Commissioner, 2012. *Annual Report 2011-12,* Melbourne: Victorian Government.

Cummins, P., Scott, D. & Scales, B., 2012. *Report of the Protecting Victoria's Vulnerable Children Inquiry*, Melbourne, Victoria: Department of Premier and Cabinet.

Department of Human Services , 2011. *Annual Report 2010-2011,* Melbourne: Government of Victoria Department of Human Services.

Department of Human Services, 2011. *Department of Human Services Standards evidence guide,* Melbourne: Victorian Government Department of Human Services.

Department of Human Services, 2012. *Critical Client Incident Management Instruction 2011,* Melbourne: Victorian Government Department of Human Services.

Horsfall, B., Bromfield, L. & McDonald, M., 2010. Are social marketing campaigns effective in preventing child abuse and neglect?. *NCPC Issues,* Issue 32. Melbourne: Australian Institute of Family Studies.

Nair, L., 2012. *Safe and supportive families and communities for children: A synopsis and critique of Australian research,* Melbourne: Australian Institute for Family Studies.



Ombudsman Victoria, May 2010. *Own motion investigation into Child Protection- out-of-home care,* Melbourne: Ombudsman Victoria.

Senate Community Affairs Committee, 2004. *Forgotten Australians: A report on Australians who experienced institutional or out-of-home care as children,* Canberra: Commonwealth of Australia.

Senate Community Affairs References Committee, 2009. *Lost Innocents and Forgotten Australians Revisited: Report on the progress with implementation of the recommendations of the Lost Innocents and Forgotten Australians Reports,* Canberra: Commonwealth of Australia.

Victorian Auditor General, 2012. *Freedom of Information Audit Report,* Melbourne: Victorian Government.

Victorian Government Department of Human Services, 2009. Guidelines for responding to quality of care concerns in out-of-home care, Melbourne: Victorian Department of Huma Services.

Victorian Government, 2012. *Victoria's Vulnerable Children: Our Shared Responsibility: Directions Paper,* Melbourne: Victorian Government.



## Appendix 1

## The Child Wellbeing and Safety Act 2005

s. 5 (1)

The development and provision of services for children and families should be based upon the fundamental principles that—

(a)society as a whole shares responsibility for promoting the wellbeing and safety of children;

(b)all children should be given the opportunity to reach their full potential and participate in society irrespective of their family circumstances and background;

(c)those who develop and provide services, as well as parents, should give the highest priority to the promotion and protection of a child's safety, health, development, education and wellbeing;

(d)parents are the primary nurturers of a child and Government intervention into family life should be limited to that necessary to secure the child's safety and wellbeing, however, it is the responsibility of Government to meet the needs of the child when the child's family is unable to provide adequate care and protection.

(2)Services for children and families should be designed and developed-

(a)to readily identify harm and damage to the child and to provide for intervention by providers of services to remove or ameliorate the causes of that harm or damage and to strengthen the capacity and efforts of parents, their families and communities to support the child as early as possible in the child's life;

(b)to accord with the needs of each local community with the active involvement of that community's cultural groups, and to be accessible and responsive to the particular cultures, languages and circumstances of the community and to be properly planned and co-ordinated with services provided by other local and regional communities;



### s. 5

(c)to give the highest priority to making appropriate and sufficient levels of assistance available to children and families in communities or population groups that are known to have the greatest need;

(d)to promote continuous improvement in the quality of those services, based on the best available knowledge of the needs of children and their stages of development.

(3)The providers of services to children and families should-

(a)protect the rights of children and families and, to the greatest extent possible, encourage their participation in any decision-making that affects their lives;

(b)acknowledge and be respectful of the child's individual identity, circumstances and cultural identity and be responsive to the particular needs of the child;

(c)make decisions about intervention by the providers of services into a child's or family's life and about access by a child or family to those services in a timely manner being mindful of any harmful effects that may be caused to the child by a delay in making decisions or providing services;

(d)ensure that families are made aware of the services available to them and of the benefits these services can provide, especially to those families in most need of assistance;

(e)co-operate with other services or professionals to work in the interests of the child and family.





Appendix 2

Centre for Excellence Training Calendar



## 2012 Learning and Development

#### Who are we?

The Conine for Excellence in Childrard Family Welfare (The Conine), ETC 36% is the posk body for ever 94 member organisations in the Velorian child, youth and family services sector.

We are committed to developing the sector through:

- Pomoting innovation
- Poviding a voke
  Improving social satisfies Providing expert advice

Learning opportunities on offer include scheduled and bokened taining program and a number of networks and groups, holiding • Tosisi Care Publicity and Neculianet Network • Tosisi Care Stalingic Paraing Goup • Kheling Care Network • Ordeffest Analitation Sport Social Working Coup • English Australians Sport Social Working Coup • English Australians Sport

- Corporate Services Network

Red Rocks

We also manage the Hestkentral Care Luanning and Development. Strategy (FCLDs) the Quality impowernet initiative and the Transford Participation (Care point: M. Vara and Parage to trave texes initiated by inclusion and matter to initiative and provide protestion in development seatures within the Starting/Cut Sakey Traffic Sakey Education program.

#### How can we help with your specific learning needs?

Along with our scheduled Learning and Development Calendar, for a number of years the Centre has also offered talored cost-effective, high quality, opent training and consultancy to the community sector and we box to word to continuing to do so in 2012. As the peak body for the child and family services sector we have a large network of expert ballitators drawn from the sector who can provide tailoted training and consultancy services to address a broad range of needs, from those programs listed in this Learning and Development Calendar or additional learning needs not identified here.

Some of the benefits of reaching training in-house al your site include-

- . Having a failored program that meets the particular context of your service provision
- · Opportunities for more floatbility with regards to program length and delivery method
- Cost-effectiveness and time efficiency
- Opportunities to share and collaborate on in-house training programs with partner organisations in your local area
- · Constiency of message across your team or organisation · Increased application of Italning into practice through program
- tor organization-while training

Pittere-contact Brenda Nath (03) 9094 3503 Brendanasheydodwastuau if you would like to explore a particular learning need and get more information on costs and options for in-house training delivery.

#### Our scheduled training events

The altached Learning and Development Calendar of scheduled programs from February to December 2012 has been developed in response to feedback, consultation and review of sector wide isaming needs. Programs are delivered by skilled and experienced practitioners, and consultants, many from the Caritie's own member organisations. Picese let us know if themate additional learning models that you look are missing and/or that you are interested in helping us to address, by contacting litenda Nash (03) 9614 1577, Bindanahectochwanau

#### More information

201

More information about each program is a salable on our website tervise, for the case, say, simply go to the Lisam page, and look for Centre Events. From these you can view the calendar and download a fiver and registration form. You can also contact have fawerince on (63) 9614 1577, imail trainings declivastrau to more information about any of the listest programs.

For the Centre's Quality and/or Looking After Children (LAC) Learning Circle dates please contact Judith Newbold al Juditurewboldecfochkannau (03) 96141577.



#### Learning and Development Calendar 2012 February to December

'Knowing is not enough, we must apply; willing is not enough, we must do'

Goethe

Management Skills for New Team Leaders 7th March 2017 29th Autori 2012 1 day 900am to 430pm \$785 (\$245 Membersy plus GST Facilitator: Catarithe

Project Management 20th and 21st March 2012 2 days, 900pm to 430pm \$505 (\$405 Members) plux CST Facilitator: Paul Merten

Promoting a Positive Organitational Culture 29th March 2012 18th Onlinker 2012 1 day 900am to 430pm \$785 (\$245 Members) plus (\$31 Facilitator: David Christy

#### Developing Performance (Foundations of Supervision Part 1) 9th May 2012 12th September 2012 1 day 900am to 430pm \$785 g245 Members play GSP Facilitator: Caratiche

**Citical Supervision** (Foundations of Supervision Part 2) 10hMay 2012 13th September 2012 1 day 900am to 430pm \$76 626 Members play 65P Facilitator: Caraniche

#### Resolving Conflict in the Workplace 17th May 2012 1 day 900am to 430pm \$795 (\$245 Members) plus (\$21 Facilitator: Jorny Dulor

Note when Developing Performance and Clinical Supervision are booked together the total rate is \$405 plus 637 to members and \$505 pilos GST for non-members (a saving of \$94).

Intermediate Supervision Psychosocial Development: Birth to Adolescence 27th March 2012 7th August 2012 \$265 (\$245 Members) plus GST 1 day, 900am to 430pm \$295 (\$345 Members) plus GST Facilitator: Lighthouse Foundation

31st.3dy 2012

30th October 2012

Facilitator: Caraniche

Introduction to Workplace Mediation

Sth December 2012

1 day 900am to 430pm

Facilitator: Jerry Drive

\$265 (\$245 Members) plus GST

**Family Group Conterending** 

21ht and 23hd Robinsony 2012

\$505 (\$405 Members) plus GST

Facilitator: Angela McCullach

**Case Management Practice** 

28hand 29h February 2012

\$505 gA05 Membersi plus GST

27ed and 24th October 2012

Facilitator: Jerry Cummings

Good Documentation

1 day, 900am to 430pm

**Counseling Skills for** 

27nd March 2012

22nd August 2012

1 day 900am to 430bm

Facilitator: Caraniche

\$7% (\$76 Members) plus GST

\$76 g345 Members plus GST

1# March 2012

Facilitator: OKC

30th August 2012

7 days, 900am to 430pm

20th and 7 ht June 2012

7 days 900am to 430am

Introduction to

1 day 900am to 430bm

The Post Traumatic Relationship: Undentanding and Responding to **Families in Traina** 

17th and 18th April 2012 2 days, 900am to 430pm \$505 gA05 Membersi plus GST Facilitator: Donna Zander

Appropriate Screening of Carers 8th May 2012 1st November 2012 1 day, 900am to 430pm \$3% (\$345 Members) plus GST Facilitator: GallWalton

Effective Questioning and Rehaming: Setting Goals and Empowering Families 15th May 2012 13th Nevember 2012 1 day 930am to 400pm<sup>4</sup> \$76 (\$76 Members) plus GST Facilitator: Wesley Mission/Lifeline

Court Skills 24b May 2012 4th December 2012 1 day, 900am to 430pm \$26 g345 Members plus GST Facilitator: David Cherry

#### Introduction to Assessment of Risk and Needs in Family Work 31ht May 2012 25th October 2012 1 day 930am to 430am<sup>4</sup> \$3%5 (\$345 Members) plus GST

Facilitator: Iyn Edwards Case Workers and Support Workers Mediation Techniques and Family Work: Harness Conflict for Positive

Outcomes 28th June 2012 1 day 900am to 430pm \$7% (\$76 Members) plus GST Facilitator: Jerry Drive

"Peace rate amended start and finish

#### Unlocking Childhood Trauma: Keys to Transforming the Mind, Bain and the Body 20th September 2012 1 day 900am to 430pm \$295 (\$245 Members plus GST Facilitator: Donna Zander

Working with Culturally and

Refucee Communities in the

16th April 2012

1 day 900am ito 4.30pm

Facilitator: Latincia Kaur,

K Diversity Consultants

www.cwme.org.au, he 120829-125

CWW

and Young People

2nd August 2012

For more information and to

register contact CAVEWIth Me

Looking After Muslim Children

Half day 900am to 1200pm Facilitator CATE With Me

For more information and to

Linguistically Diverse (CALD) and

Child and Family Wolfare Setting

Was Child: Promoting Personal Safety for Adolescents 30th April 2012 1 day 900amio 430pm \$295 (\$245 Members plux GST

Facilitator: Child Way Working with Parents with an Intellectual Disubility

2nd May 2012 1 day 900amilo 430pm \$295 (\$245 Members) plus GST **Excliption: Partie Molhiesco and** 

RimiRavan, CMS

Was Child: Promoting Personal Safety for Young Children 29th May 2012 1 day 9 Damin 4 30cm \$7% (\$7% Members plus GST Facilitator: Child Whe

Dealing with Challenging Behaviours 4h kme 2012

1 day 900amio 430pm \$7% (\$745 Members plus GST Facilitator: Dr Rvidda Gergg Connections Uniting Care

Introduction to Motivational Interviewing: Encouraging Change with Resistant Clients Ghilune 2012

71st November 2012 1 day 900 proto 4 30 pro-\$7% (\$745 Members plus CST **Facilitator:** Caraniche



S Centre for Eacohonce is Cold and Really William Inc.

Centre for Excellence in Child and Family Welfare Inc. Submission to Victorian Parliament Family Community Development Committee - September 2012



CWW Developing Cultural Competence In Out of Home Care 17th October 2012 Half day 900am to 1200pm **Facilitator: Latinzia Kaur** KDwnib Constants





## Appendix 3

Processes and Procedures in residential care



#### B.1: Residential care - overview of screening and investigation procedures





#### 2: Residential care — overview of formal care review procedure





Processes and Procedures in kinship care











#### Figure C.3: Kinship care procedures for formal care review process







#### Procedures for review in foster care

Figure 18.1: Overview of CYFA requirements to report and investigate allegations of physical and sexual abuse by a registered carer

